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The December 28, 2017 Voluntary Pre-Bid Meeting and Tour was called to order at 9:00 am by 

Beth Biggins-Ramer, Medina County Solid Waste Coordinator. 

In attendance 

A copy of the  sign in sheet is attached to this Addendum 2. 

Minutes  

Beth Biggins-Ramer opened the meeting with an overview of the items to be covered and the 

expectations of the meeting.  A tour of the facility was provided to the attendees after the 

meeting.  Beth's overview included the following statements and discussion points: 

 Any additional questions generated after the Pre-Bid Meeting are to be e-mailed to  

Christine Hegarty, Administrative Secretary, Medina County Sanitary Engineer’s 

Office, by January 3
rd 

at 4:00 pm; 

 A description of the 8700 Lake Road property and facilities; 

 A description of  Medina County Solid Waste District’s current collection and recycling 

of “Specialty Wastes” and how these activities will remain independent of the activities 

associated with this Proposal (refer also to Addendum 1); 

 Oral questions from the attendees were recorded.   

 The Household Hazardous Waste Collection Program is one of several programs 

managed by the District, for an integrated solid waste management system. 

This document includes questions asked during the Pre-Bid Meeting for The Transportation, 

Disposal, Recycling and Technical Assistance Services Associated with a Permanent Household 

Hazardous Waste Collection Program for the Medina County Solid Waste District. The questions 

are presented in standard black text, along with the respective answers  in bold, red text. 

 

Questions Received at the Pre-Bid Meeting 

 

1. What are the required HHW Contractor’s staffing hours weekly or monthly in 

regards to Attachment B? 

A: The costs associated with the following services shall be included in the Request 

for Proposal (RFP) Attachment B:  Base Bid Pricing Sheet as follows: 

  

i. Initial Training:  The HHW Contractor shall provide an initial training 

session for District staff, prior to the opening of the Specialty Waste 

Recycling Center (SWRC), on all HHW material packing requirements.  

The initial training will occur outside of regular business hours, such as a 

Sunday.  All staff required to work in the SWRC will be required to 

attend this training session (~ five staff members).  A proposed agenda 
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has been included as Exhibit 1.  The initial training session will require 

approximately 4-6 hours.  The Contractor's Project Manager/Certified 

Hazardous Materials Manager (CHMM) shall conduct the initial 

training.   

Exhibit 1:  Proposed Agenda 

 
 

ii. Annual Refresher Training:  The HHW Contractor’s Project 

Manager/CHMM shall conduct the annual refresher training to all 

applicable staff.  The refresher training shall be conducted outside of 

regular business hours.  The refresher training session will require 

approximately 4-6 hours. 

 

iii. Assessment and Packaging of High Hazard and Unknown Materials:  

The HHW Contactor shall provide on-site staffing for the proper 

identification and packaging of high hazard materials, lab packs and 

unknowns placed in the temporary staging area by District personnel.   

Volume and frequency of these materials is not known to the District, but 

are expected to be an "on-demand" type arrangement.  The services are 

not required to be performed by the Contractor's Project Manager/ 

CHMM, however,  shall be conducted under their direct supervision. The 

District and HHW Contractor will coordinate as to the schedule to 

properly manage these materials on an ongoing basis.  

2. What are the required HHW Contractor’s staffing hours weekly or monthly in 

regards to Attachment C? 

A: The costs associated with the following services shall be included in the Request 

for Proposal (RFP) Attachment C:  Additional Pricing Sheet as follows: 

 

i. Initial Time On-Site for Start-Up:  The HHW Contractor’s Project 

Manager/CHMM shall be on-site in the SWRC up to a duration not to 

exceed the hours available to the public on the designated days of  
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operation for the first month the SWRC is open to the public.  The cost 

for this service shall be billed the price set forth under “On-Site Technical 

Assistance Per Hour” delineated in the RFP Attachment C:  Additional 

Pricing.  The HHW Contractor will be paid for only the time on-site, 

which may include evenings and weekends. 

 

ii. Attachment C:  Attachment C requests per hour pricing for additional 

packing procedure training and technical assistance above and beyond 

the items delineated above in this Answer #1.  These services shall be 

conducted under the direct supervision of the Project Manager.  The 

services are not required to be performed by the Project Manager/ 

CHMM. This service must be approved by the District prior to being 

conducted by the HHW Contractor.  

3. Based on the required staffing hours in Q1 and Q2, is there a minimum number of 

HHW Contractor individuals required to cover these hours? 

A: No.  There is no minimum number of HHW Contractor individuals required to 

perform the services outlined in the Request for Proposals.  The assessment, 

packaging, management, transportation, recycling and disposal of HHW shall be 

performed by the HHW Contactor in such a manner that complies with all state 

and federal regulations to ensure the health and safety of personnel and the 

public. The District is responsible for the operation of the facility. The HHW 

Contractor is responsible for initial training, annual training and technical 

assistance as approved by the District.  

 

4. Based on the answers to Q1, Q2, and Q3what will be the activities and 

responsibilities of the Contractor staff? 

A:  Please refer to the Request for Proposals document and Addendum #2 in its 

entirety.   

 

5. Will there be additional staff or hours required at the start-up of the program?  If so, 

what are the hours required to be provided; number of individuals; and for what 

length of time? 

A:  See Answers #1, #2, and #3 above.   

 

6. How will refresher or additional training be charged? 

A:  See Answers #1, #2, and #3 above.  Training in excess of the hours and personnel 

delineated in Answers 1 -  5 shall be invoiced by the Contractor at the prices per 

hour set forth in the RFP Attachment C:  Additional Pricing. 
 

7. Is a Certified Hazardous Materials Manager (CHMM) required to be one of the 

individuals on-site for the hours delineated in Answers 1, 2, 3, and 4? 
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A:  See Answer #1 for the CHMM requirements.   

 

8. The second bullet point on page 8 appears to have an incorrect statement. 

A: The second bullet point on the RFP page 8 should read as follows:  “Specialty 

supplies, containers and packing materials for high hazard materials, lab packs 

and unknowns. The HHW Contractor will supply standard containers (5-55-

gallon steel, ply or fiber containers and cubic yard boxes) and packing materials, 

and the HHW Contractor is expected to supply all other materials needed to 

package and ship off-site these materials.” 
 

9. Will the Contractor or the Medina County Solid Waste District staff be responsible 

to bulk fuels? 

A:  District staff shall be responsible to bulk only antifreeze, cooking grease and 

used motor oil. The HHW Contractor is not responsible for bulking operations 

aside from initial training, annual refresher training and "on demand" 

requested technical assistance regarding packaging and HHW handling. 
 

10.Can fuels be over packed and by whom? 

A:  No miscellaneous flammables will be loose packed according to the HHW 

Contractor requirements.  
 

11.Can the breakout of oil versus latex paint collected in 2017 be provided? 

A:  Based on the year 2017 data provided by the District’s prior HHW Contractor, 

approximately 80% of the total amount of bulk paint collected was latex in 

nature and 20% was oil-based (Refer to the RFP – Attachment D). 

 

12. Can a copy of the prior bid document be provided? 

A:  Included  with this Addendum 2 is a copy of the Medina County Solid Waste 

District’s March 13, 2014 Request for Proposal for the Collection, 

Transportation, Recycling and/or Disposal of Household Hazardous Waste; 

Resolution No. 14-0221 Awarding the Proposal; and the signed Agreement for 

these services as Exhibit 3. 

 

13.Can a copy of the State Fire Code that delineates the amounts of materials by type to 

be housed inside the building and in the trailer be provided? 

A: State Fire Code Limitations have been included herein as Exhibit 2. 
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Exhibit 2:  State Fire Code Limitations 
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Exhibit 3 

 

Medina County Solid Waste District’s March 13, 2014 Request for Proposal for the 

Collection, Transportation, Recycling and/or Disposal of Household Hazardous Waste; 

Resolution No. 14-0221 Awarding the Proposal; and the signed Agreement 
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